
MYRTLE CREEK CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

MYRTLE CREEK COUNCIL CHAMBER 

AGENDA PACKET 02/20/2024 

All city public meetings are being digitally recorded for sound and video camera surveillance. 

The City Council of the City of Myrtle Creek will meet on Tuesday, February 20, 2024, at 5:30 PM in 
the Myrtle Creek Council Chamber, 207 NW Pleasant Street, Myrtle Creek, Oregon. 

The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the hearing 
impaired, or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities, should be made at least 48 hours in advance 
of the meeting to the City Recorder at 541-863-3171. 

The City Council reserves the right to add or delete items as needed, change the order of the agenda, and 
discuss any other business deemed necessary at the time of the study session and or/meeting. 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING – 5:30 PM 
Anyone wishing to speak on an agenda item should complete a Public Comment Form and give it to the City 
Recorder. Public Comment Forms are located at the entrance to the meeting place. Anyone commenting on a 
subject not on the agenda will be called upon during the “Citizens Heard on Non-Agenda Items” section of the 
agenda. Comments pertaining to specific agenda items will be taken at the time the matter is discussed by the City 
Council. 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Audit Presentation

4. Public Presentations – Items that do not require immediate council action, such as
presentations, discussions of potential future action items.

5. Citizens Heard on Non-Agenda Items

6. Consent Agenda – Requires a motion
The consent agenda consists of items of a repeating or routine nature considered under a single
action. Any Councilor may have an item on the consent agenda removed and considered
separately upon request.

Page 1 of 75



Consent Agenda Part 1 – Requires a motion 
6.1 Approval of minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting for February 6, 2024 

Consent Agenda Part 2 – Requires a motion 
6.2 Acknowledge receipt of Payroll & Claims Report for January 2024 

7. Department Reports
Items for discussion by the City Administrator and Department Heads as needed.
7.1     Planning/Community Development Report 
7.2 Finance Officer Report 
7.3 Police Department Report 
7.4 Fire Department Report 
7.5 Public Works Report 

8. Ordinances and Resolutions
Citizens will be provided the opportunity to offer comments on action items after staff has given
their report and if there is an applicant, after they have had the opportunity to speak. Action
items are expected to result in motions, resolutions, orders, or ordinances.
8.1 Resolution 24-04 – A Resolution to Approve a Supplemental Budget to Adjust the Water
Construction Budget Within the 2023-2024 Fiscal Budget.

9. Regular Agenda
Citizens will be provided the opportunity to offer comments on action items after staff has given
their report and if there is an applicant, after they have had the opportunity to speak. Action
items are expected to result in motions, resolutions, orders, or ordinances.
9.1 Awarding Contract for Coating of South Water Tank
9.2 Review and Approval of 2024 City Council Goals

10. City Administrator Report

11. Mayor and Councilor – Committee Reports and Councilor Comments

12. Executive Session
The Myrtle Creek City Council may go into Executive Session. If an Executive Session is called
to order, the appropriate ORS citation will be announced identifying the applicable statute. All
discussions are confidential and those present may disclose nothing from the Session.
Representatives of the news media are allowed to attend Executive Sessions, as provided by ORS
192.660 but must not disclose any information discussed. No Executive Session may be held for
the purpose of taking any final action or making any final decision. Executive Sessions are
closed to the public.

13. Adjournment

Page 2 of 75



CITY OF MYRTLE CREEK  
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

 

DATE:    February 6, 2024 

PLACE: Council Chambers, 207 NW Pleasant St., Myrtle Creek, Oregon 

PRESIDING OFFICER: Mayor Matthew Hald 

COUNCILORS PRESENT: Councilors: Bill Burnett, Diana Larson, Luke Dillon, Robert 
Chaney, Sr., Susan Harris 

COUNCILORS ABSENT:  

 A quorum was present throughout the meeting. 

STAFF IN ATTENDANCE: City Administrator Lonnie Rainville, City Recorder Joanna  Bilbrey 

CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Matthew Hald called the February 6, 2024 meeting to order 
at 5:30 PM 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGINACE 

PUBLIC PRESENTATION 
No public presentations  
 
CITIZEN COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEM 
Jennifer Hecker – 4244 Clarks Branch Road, Myrtle Creek 
Spoke on South Oregon Blues Festival that was held in Winston, OR last year and a Department of 
Justice investigation on the funds raised. 

CONSENT AGENDA 
Part 1 
Motion was made by Councilor Burnett and seconded by Councilor Dillon to approve the Meeting 
Minutes for January 16, 2024 as presented. Discussion: none followed 
Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

REGULAR AGENDA 
Planning Commission Application  

Page 3 of 75



There are two open positions currently on the Planning Commission. A Planning Commission 
Application was received from Bill Umphlett. 

Motion was made by Councilor Chaney to appoint Bill Umphlett to the Planning Commission. Motion 
was seconded by Councilor Larson. Discussion: none  
Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

 
2024-2025 Budget Calendar 
City Council was presented the proposed Budget Calendar for the 2024-2025 Budget Meetings. A 
Budget Committee Training session has been added to the calendar this year.  

Motion was made by Councilor Harris to accept the 2024-25 Budget Calendar as presented. Motion was 
seconded by Councilor Larson. Discussion: none  
Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

Letter from South Douglas Rodeo 
South Douglas Rodeo submitted a response letter to the information received during the October 3, 
2023, City Council Meeting regarding the bunny scramble event. Representatives from the rodeo were 
present along with audience members opposed to the bunny scramble. 

Recreational Immunity FAQ 
City Administrator Lonnie Rainville shared information regarding recent legal cases involving 
recreational immunity and possible changes to the law.  

2023 Annual Report 
City Administrator Lonnie Rainville shared with City Council the 2023 Annual Report. The Annual 
Report is included as part of the Council Packet.  

Preparation Materials for Upcoming City Council Goals Meeting 
City Administrator Lonnie Rainville reviewed with City Council the Goals from 2023 and the progress 
made.  

CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT 
City Administrator Lonnie Rainville shared about the lift station upgrades. The new lift station on 
Riverside has been completed and is working well. Both pumps on the South Main lift station have been 
replaced with the same pumps as on Riverside. The North Myrtle Lift station has also been upgraded to 
match the same pumps and control as Riverside and Main. At the end of January the bunker in Millsite 
Park was broken into and had some hand tools stolen. A police report was filed and an insurance claim 
was opened. A reminder was given that there will be an Urban Renewal Town Hall on February 22nd at 
the Community Center. The City Administrator has met with Dyer Engineering on the Holly and Leon 
paving project. Department heads are working on the new 2024-25 proposed budget.  

Page 4 of 75



MAYOR AND COUNCILOR – COMMTTEE REPORTS AND COUNCILOR COMMENTS 
Councilor Harris asked about the progress on the Rose Motel. Citizen of Year banquet will be at the 
Elks Lodge on March 23rd the theme is Get Your Kicks on Route 66. This is the 66th year the Chamber 
has held the event. Councilor Larson shared that she is still working on the Rail Road property. The 
Myrtle Creek Lions Club Crab Feed is this Saturday at the Grange. The Mayor thanked the audience for 
their presence and participation.  

ADJOURNMENT 
Mayor Matthew Hald adjourned the regular meeting of the City Council for February 6, 2024 at 6:34 
P.M. 

 

     ______________________________ 
     Matthew Hald, Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

______________________________ 
Joanna Bilbrey 
City Recorder 

 

 

Page 5 of 75



CITY OF MYRTLE CREEK 
PAYROLL AND CLAIMS 

JANUARY ~~ 2024 

FUND FUND 
# DESCRIPTION BILLS P/R TOTAL 

100 GENERAL FUND  225,123.46  12,416.43  237,539.89 
150 PUBLIC SAFETY FEE          98.44 - 98.44
200 SEWER FUND    37,859.19  39,966.67    77,825.86 
210 SEWER CONSTRUCTION      9,292.87 - 9,292.87
250 WATER FUND    35,594.98  28,020.12    63,615.10 
260 WATER CONSTRUCTION      1,092.50 - 1,092.50
280 AIRPORT FUND        945.10 - 945.10
300 STREET FUND    10,639.73    8,838.28 19,478.01
420 SEWER EFFLUENT LOAN      -   -        -   
430 WWTP REPAY FUND      -   -        -   
450 WTP E RES DEBT FUND      -   -        -   
500 PARK DEVELOPMENT      -   -        -   
550 RV PARK      2,841.94 - 2,841.94
580 CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND      -   -        -   

TOTAL ALL FUNDS  323,488.21  89,241.50  412,729.71 

Page 6 of 75



Page 7 of 75



Page 8 of 75



Page 9 of 75



Page 10 of 75



Page 11 of 75



Page 12 of 75



Page 13 of 75



Page 14 of 75



Page 15 of 75



Page 16 of 75



Page 17 of 75



Page 18 of 75



Page 19 of 75



Page 20 of 75



Page 21 of 75



Page 22 of 75



Community Development Department 
Monthly Report 

February 20, 2024 

General Planning Statistics: 
7 Planning Clearances  

 3 New Home Construction – Simpson Ln 

 1 Remodel 

 1 Zone Compatibility Review for New Business 

 1 Accessory Building 

 1 Fence 

Significant Planning Activities: 
Klimback Subdivision 

Sidewalks are fully installed in the subdivision.  IE Engineering is set to begin 
setting pins for lot locations.  With all the rain we have received, the developer 
has identified the need for additional storm line and French drains to catch the 
runoff that comes from the hillside behind the subdivision.  These new lines 
were installed at the end of January.  The developer is still pushing to have 
everything completed by the end of February. 

     Tessia’s Hill Estates Subdivision  

Work is resuming at Tessia’s Hill Estate Subdivision.  Gosselin Construction 
has been contracted to install the electrical conduit.  This work started the first 
week of February.  The developer is hoping to have Knife River resume work 
on Streets in April but is dependent on weather. 

Residential Zoning Code Amendments 

The Planning Commission received information regarding the mandated code 
amendments that need to be made to comply with new state housing rules.  The 
timeline was presented, and a review of the existing codes conducted.  In 
February there will be a public work session to take public input on the topic. 

Page 23 of 75



General Ledger

Budget Status
User: lhiscocks
Printed: 2/2/2024 - 11:07 AM
Period: 7, 2024
Account Number Description Budget Amount Period Amount YTD Amount YTD Var Available % Avail
Fund 100 GENERAL FUND
Dept 100-0000
R1

Revenue Sub Totals: 4,220,556.00 225,621.99 3,601,777.20 618,778.80 618,778.80 14.66

Dept 100-0100 FIRE DEPT
05 PERSONNEL SERVICES

05 Sub Totals: 53,600.00 5,059.38 34,223.06 19,376.94 19,376.94 36.15

06 MATERIALS & SERVICES
06 Sub Totals: 128,910.00 9,704.91 68,005.95 60,904.05 60,904.05 47.25

07 CAPITAL OUTLAY
07 Sub Totals: 5,500.00 0.00 1,522.00 3,978.00 3,978.00 72.33

09 MISCELLANEOUS
09 Sub Totals: 45,000.00 0.00 0.00 45,000.00 45,000.00 100.00

Expense Sub Totals: 233,010.00 14,764.29 103,751.01 129,258.99 129,258.99 55.47

Dept 100-0200 MUNICIPAL COURT
05 PERSONNEL SERVICES

05 Sub Totals: 63,558.00 4,879.43 31,136.81 32,421.19 32,421.19 51.01

06 MATERIALS & SERVICES
06 Sub Totals: 87,400.00 3,771.53 34,865.03 52,534.97 52,534.97 60.11

Expense Sub Totals: 150,958.00 8,650.96 66,001.84 84,956.16 84,956.16 56.28

Dept 100-0300 LIBRARY DEPT
06 MATERIALS & SERVICES

06 Sub Totals: 11,100.00 1,141.29 7,648.51 3,451.49 3,451.49 31.09

Expense Sub Totals: 11,100.00 1,141.29 7,648.51 3,451.49 3,451.49 31.09

Dept 100-0500 PARKS DEPT
05 PERSONNEL SERVICES

05 Sub Totals: 164,356.00 10,695.42 82,200.59 82,155.41 82,155.41 49.99

06 MATERIALS & SERVICES
06 Sub Totals: 61,050.00 3,116.87 27,829.49 33,220.51 33,220.51 54.42

09 MISCELLANEOUS
09 Sub Totals: 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 100.00

Expense Sub Totals: 230,406.00 13,812.29 110,030.08 120,375.92 120,375.92 52.25

Dept 100-0510 COMMUNITY CENTER
06 MATERIALS & SERVICES

06 Sub Totals: 10,350.00 1,146.80 3,644.47 6,705.53 6,705.53 64.79
Expense Sub Totals: 10,350.00 1,146.80 3,644.47 6,705.53 6,705.53 64.79
Dept 0510 Sub Totals: 10,350.00 1,146.80 3,644.47 6,705.53

Dept 100-0550 GENERAL EQUIPMENT
07 CAPITAL OUTLAY

Page 24 of 75



07 Sub Totals: 5,000.00 0.00 827.35 4,172.65 4,172.65 83.45

Expense Sub Totals: 5,000.00 0.00 827.35 4,172.65 4,172.65 83.45

Dept 100-0600 SWIM POOL
05 PERSONNEL SERVICES

05 Sub Totals: 66,940.00 0.00 45,844.98 21,095.02 21,095.02 31.51

06 MATERIALS & SERVICES
06 Sub Totals: 23,500.00 503.52 14,380.94 9,119.06 9,119.06 38.80

07 CAPITAL OUTLAY
07 Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Expense Sub Totals: 90,440.00 503.52 60,225.92 30,214.08 30,214.08 33.41

Dept 100-0700 POLICE DEPT
05 PERSONNEL SERVICES

05 Sub Totals: 953,655.00 90,109.66 525,319.12 428,335.88 428,335.88 44.92

06 MATERIALS & SERVICES
06 Sub Totals: 160,040.00 4,125.82 71,578.04 88,461.96 88,461.96 55.27

07 CAPITAL OUTLAY
07 Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

09 MISCELLANEOUS
09 Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Expense Sub Totals: 1,113,695.00 94,235.48 596,897.16 516,797.84 516,797.84 46.40

Dept 100-0900 PUBLIC BUILDINGS
05 PERSONNEL SERVICES

05 Sub Totals: 56,093.00 4,401.69 32,441.79 23,651.21 23,651.21 42.16

06 MATERIALS & SERVICES
06 Sub Totals: 43,400.00 4,382.33 20,793.29 22,606.71 22,606.71 52.09

07 CAPITAL OUTLAY
07 Sub Totals: 3,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 100.00
Expense Sub Totals: 102,493.00 8,784.02 53,235.08 49,257.92 49,257.92 48.06
Dept 0900 Sub Totals: 102,493.00 8,784.02 53,235.08 49,257.92

Dept 100-1000 PUBLIC WKS/SHOP
06 MATERIALS & SERVICES

06 Sub Totals: 35,500.00 2,138.99 20,448.51 15,051.49 15,051.49 42.40

Expense Sub Totals: 35,500.00 2,138.99 20,448.51 15,051.49 15,051.49 42.40

Dept 100-1100 SUPPORT SERVICES
05 PERSONNEL SERVICES

05 Sub Totals: 400,139.00 32,161.86 223,799.96 176,339.04 176,339.04 44.07

06 MATERIALS & SERVICES
06 Sub Totals: 219,046.00 7,259.59 157,210.19 61,835.81 61,835.81 28.23

07 CAPITAL OUTLAY
07 Sub Totals: 318,000.00 51,024.07 100,878.82 217,121.18 217,121.18 68.28

09 MISCELLANEOUS
09 Sub Totals: 1,300,419.00 0.00 130,000.00 1,170,419.00 1,170,419.00 90.00

Expense Sub Totals: 2,237,604.00 90,445.52 611,888.97 1,625,715.03 1,625,715.03 72.65
Page 25 of 75



Fund Revenue Sub Totals: 4,220,556.00 225,621.99 3,601,777.20 618,778.80 618,778.80 14.66
Fund Expense Sub Totals: 4,220,556.00 235,623.16 1,634,598.90 2,585,957.10 2,585,957.10 61.27
Fund 100 Sub Totals: 0.00 10,001.17 -1,967,178.30 1,967,178.30

Fund 150 PUBLIC SAFETY FEE
Dept 150-0000
R1

Revenue Sub Totals: 77,544.00 6,559.06 38,380.69 39,163.31 39,163.31 50.50

Dept 150-1500
06 MATERIALS & SERVICES

06 Sub Totals: 35,000.00 0.00 0.00 35,000.00 35,000.00 100.00

07 CAPITAL OUTLAY
07 Sub Totals: 7,544.00 0.00 741.75 6,802.25 6,802.25 90.17

09 MISCELLANEOUS
09 Sub Totals: 35,000.00 0.00 0.00 35,000.00 35,000.00 100.00

Expense Sub Totals: 77,544.00 0.00 741.75 76,802.25 76,802.25 99.04

Fund Revenue Sub Totals: 77,544.00 6,559.06 38,380.69 39,163.31 39,163.31 50.50
Fund Expense Sub Totals: 77,544.00 0.00 741.75 76,802.25 76,802.25 99.04
Fund 150 Sub Totals: 0.00 -6,559.06 -37,638.94 37,638.94

Fund 200 SEWER FUND
Dept 200-0000
R1

Revenue Sub Totals: 2,348,850.00 152,429.28 1,630,395.86 718,454.14 718,454.14 30.59

Dept 200-2000 SEWER MAINT
05 PERSONNEL SERVICES

05 Sub Totals: 194,931.00 20,969.31 112,238.78 82,692.22 82,692.22 42.42

06 MATERIALS & SERVICES
06 Sub Totals: 224,045.00 3,882.59 49,774.41 174,270.59 174,270.59 77.78

07 CAPITAL OUTLAY
07 Sub Totals: 30,000.00 0.00 12,130.99 17,869.01 17,869.01 59.56

Expense Sub Totals: 448,976.00 24,851.90 174,144.18 274,831.82 274,831.82 61.21

Dept 200-2100 SEWER PLANT
05 PERSONNEL SERVICES

05 Sub Totals: 340,896.00 21,582.22 179,237.20 161,658.80 161,658.80 47.42

06 MATERIALS & SERVICES
06 Sub Totals: 438,526.00 31,337.07 231,261.65 207,264.35 207,264.35 47.26

07 CAPITAL OUTLAY
07 Sub Totals: 170,000.00 5,814.60 66,683.69 103,316.31 103,316.31 60.77

Expense Sub Totals: 949,422.00 58,733.89 477,182.54 472,239.46 472,239.46 49.74

Dept 200-9000 MISCELLANEOUS
09 MISCELLANEOUS

09 Sub Totals: 950,452.00 0.00 170,000.00 780,452.00 780,452.00 82.11

Expense Sub Totals: 950,452.00 0.00 170,000.00 780,452.00 780,452.00 82.11
Page 26 of 75



Fund Revenue Sub Totals: 2,348,850.00 152,429.28 1,630,395.86 718,454.14 718,454.14 30.59
Fund Expense Sub Totals: 2,348,850.00 83,585.79 821,326.72 1,527,523.28 1,527,523.28 65.03
Fund 200 Sub Totals: 0.00 -68,843.49 -809,069.14 809,069.14

Fund 210 SEWER CONSTRUCTION
Dept 210-0000
R1

Revenue Sub Totals: 1,940,554.00 8,519.36 1,325,037.74 615,516.26 615,516.26 31.72

Dept 210-2200 SEWER CONSTRUCTION
07 CAPITAL OUTLAY

07 Sub Totals: 1,300,000.00 9,292.87 615,198.90 684,801.10 684,801.10 52.68

09 MISCELLANEOUS
09 Sub Totals: 640,554.00 0.00 0.00 640,554.00 640,554.00 100.00

Expense Sub Totals: 1,940,554.00 9,292.87 615,198.90 1,325,355.10 1,325,355.10 68.30

Fund Revenue Sub Totals: 1,940,554.00 8,519.36 1,325,037.74 615,516.26 615,516.26 31.72
Fund Expense Sub Totals: 1,940,554.00 9,292.87 615,198.90 1,325,355.10 1,325,355.10 68.30
Fund 210 Sub Totals: 0.00 773.51 -709,838.84 709,838.84

Fund 250 WATER FUND
Dept 250-0000
R1

Revenue Sub Totals: 1,981,500.00 91,105.84 1,530,843.56 450,656.44 450,656.44 22.74

Dept 250-2300 WATER MAINT
05 PERSONNEL SERVICES

05 Sub Totals: 195,241.00 15,183.43 109,620.71 85,620.29 85,620.29 43.85

06 MATERIALS & SERVICES
06 Sub Totals: 217,938.00 14,792.27 52,966.23 164,971.77 164,971.77 75.70

07 CAPITAL OUTLAY
07 Sub Totals: 35,000.00 0.00 10,333.75 24,666.25 24,666.25 70.48

Expense Sub Totals: 448,179.00 29,975.70 172,920.69 275,258.31 275,258.31 61.42

Dept 250-2500 WATER PLANT
05 PERSONNEL SERVICES

05 Sub Totals: 185,584.00 13,500.68 94,638.86 90,945.14 90,945.14 49.00

06 MATERIALS & SERVICES
06 Sub Totals: 215,149.00 20,596.34 123,615.72 91,533.28 91,533.28 42.54

07 CAPITAL OUTLAY
07 Sub Totals: 38,000.00 0.00 23,244.74 14,755.26 14,755.26 38.83

Expense Sub Totals: 438,733.00 34,097.02 241,499.32 197,233.68 197,233.68 44.96

Dept 250-2550 SPRINGBROOK PLANT
06 MATERIALS & SERVICES

06 Sub Totals: 3,875.00 752.65 2,748.68 1,126.32 1,126.32 29.07

07 CAPITAL OUTLAY
07 Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Expense Sub Totals: 3,875.00 752.65 2,748.68 1,126.32 1,126.32 29.07

Dept 250-9000 MISCELLANEOUS
09 MISCELLANEOUS

09 Sub Totals: 1,090,713.00 0.00 307,775.00 782,938.00 782,938.00 71.78
Page 27 of 75



Expense Sub Totals: 1,090,713.00 0.00 307,775.00 782,938.00 782,938.00 71.78

Fund Revenue Sub Totals: 1,981,500.00 91,105.84 1,530,843.56 450,656.44 450,656.44 22.74
Fund Expense Sub Totals: 1,981,500.00 64,825.37 724,943.69 1,256,556.31 1,256,556.31 63.41
Fund 250 Sub Totals: 0.00 -26,280.47 -805,899.87 805,899.87

Fund 255 WATER METER DEPOSITS
Dept 255-0000
R1

Revenue Sub Totals: 0.00 975.00 -200.00 200.00 200.00 0.00

Dept 255-2400
06 MATERIALS & SERVICES

06 Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Expense Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Fund Revenue Sub Totals: 0.00 975.00 -200.00 200.00 200.00 0.00
Fund Expense Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Fund 255 Sub Totals: 0.00 -975.00 200.00 -200.00

Fund 260 WATER CONSTRUCTION
Dept 260-0000
R1

Revenue Sub Totals: 2,368,860.00 8,448.37 2,360,954.10 7,905.90 7,905.90 0.33

Dept 260-2600 WATER CONSTRUCTION
06 MATERIALS & SERVICES

06 Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

07 CAPITAL OUTLAY
07 Sub Totals: 2,368,860.00 1,092.50 43,728.04 2,325,131.96 2,325,131.96 98.15

09 MISCELLANEOUS
09 Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Expense Sub Totals: 2,368,860.00 1,092.50 43,728.04 2,325,131.96 2,325,131.96 98.15

Fund Revenue Sub Totals: 2,368,860.00 8,448.37 2,360,954.10 7,905.90 7,905.90 0.33
Fund Expense Sub Totals: 2,368,860.00 1,092.50 43,728.04 2,325,131.96 2,325,131.96 98.15
Fund 260 Sub Totals: 0.00 -7,355.87 -2,317,226.06 2,317,226.06

Fund 280 AIRPORT FUND
Dept 280-0000
R1

Revenue Sub Totals: 111,253.00 4,199.97 97,383.77 13,869.23 13,869.23 12.47
Dept 280-2800 AIRPORT DEPT
06 MATERIALS & SERVICES

06 Sub Totals: 24,100.00 995.10 5,908.14 18,191.86 18,191.86 75.48

07 CAPITAL OUTLAY
07 Sub Totals: 20,000.00 0.00 6,236.00 13,764.00 13,764.00 68.82

09 MISCELLANEOUS
09 Sub Totals: 67,153.00 0.00 0.00 67,153.00 67,153.00 100.00

Expense Sub Totals: 111,253.00 995.10 12,144.14 99,108.86 99,108.86 89.08

Fund Revenue Sub Totals: 111,253.00 4,199.97 97,383.77 13,869.23 13,869.23 12.47
Fund Expense Sub Totals: 111,253.00 995.10 12,144.14 99,108.86 99,108.86 89.08

Page 28 of 75



Fund 280 Sub Totals: 0.00 -3,204.87 -85,239.63 85,239.63
Fund 300 STREET FUND
Dept 300-0000
R1

Revenue Sub Totals: 1,474,924.00 36,593.85 1,100,537.01 374,386.99 374,386.99 25.38

Dept 300-3000 STREET DEPT
05 PERSONNEL SERVICES

05 Sub Totals: 125,808.00 9,436.45 72,248.96 53,559.04 53,559.04 42.57

06 MATERIALS & SERVICES
06 Sub Totals: 172,612.00 6,943.14 51,571.30 121,040.70 121,040.70 70.12

07 CAPITAL OUTLAY
07 Sub Totals: 365,000.00 3,000.00 46,536.00 318,464.00 318,464.00 87.25

09 MISCELLANEOUS
09 Sub Totals: 811,504.00 0.00 0.00 811,504.00 811,504.00 100.00

Expense Sub Totals: 1,474,924.00 19,379.59 170,356.26 1,304,567.74 1,304,567.74 88.45

Fund Revenue Sub Totals: 1,474,924.00 36,593.85 1,100,537.01 374,386.99 374,386.99 25.38
Fund Expense Sub Totals: 1,474,924.00 19,379.59 170,356.26 1,304,567.74 1,304,567.74 88.45
Fund 300 Sub Totals: 0.00 -17,214.26 -930,180.75 930,180.75

Fund 330 STORM WATER FUND
Dept 330-0000
R1

Revenue Sub Totals: 52,432.00 106.49 813.81 51,618.19 51,618.19 98.45
Dept 330-3300 STORM WATER DEPARTMENT
06 MATERIALS & SERVICES

06 Sub Totals: 13,750.00 0.00 810.85 12,939.15 12,939.15 94.10

07 CAPITAL OUTLAY
07 Sub Totals: 10,000.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 100.00

09 MISCELLANEOUS
09 Sub Totals: 28,682.00 0.00 0.00 28,682.00 28,682.00 100.00

Expense Sub Totals: 52,432.00 0.00 810.85 51,621.15 51,621.15 98.45

Fund Revenue Sub Totals: 52,432.00 106.49 813.81 51,618.19 51,618.19 98.45
Fund Expense Sub Totals: 52,432.00 0.00 810.85 51,621.15 51,621.15 98.45
Fund 330 Sub Totals: 0.00 -106.49 -2.96 2.96

Fund 430 WWTP CONSTRUCTION DEBT REPAY
Dept 430-0000
R1

Revenue Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Dept 430-4400 WWTP CONST REPAY
08 DEBT SERVICE

08 Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Expense Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Dept 430-9000 MISCELLANEOUS
09 MISCELLANEOUS

09 Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Expense Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00Page 29 of 75



Fund Revenue Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Fund Expense Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Fund 430 Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Fund 450 WTP CONSTRUCTION DEBT REPAY
Dept 450-0000
R1

Revenue Sub Totals: 557,409.00 993.93 568,917.71 -11,508.71 -11,508.71 0.00

Dept 450-4550 WTP CONSTRUCT REPAY
08 DEBT SERVICE

08 Sub Totals: 307,774.00 0.00 307,775.32 -1.32 -1.32 0.00

Expense Sub Totals: 307,774.00 0.00 307,775.32 -1.32 -1.32 0.00

Dept 450-9000 MISCELLANEOUS
09 MISCELLANEOUS

09 Sub Totals: 249,635.00 0.00 0.00 249,635.00 249,635.00 100.00

Expense Sub Totals: 249,635.00 0.00 0.00 249,635.00 249,635.00 100.00

Fund Revenue Sub Totals: 557,409.00 993.93 568,917.71 -11,508.71 -11,508.71 0.00
Fund Expense Sub Totals: 557,409.00 0.00 307,775.32 249,633.68 249,633.68 44.78
Fund 450 Sub Totals: 0.00 -993.93 -261,142.39 261,142.39

Fund 500 PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND
Dept 500-0000
R1

Revenue Sub Totals: 250,508.00 1,236.91 317,616.74 -67,108.74 -67,108.74 0.00
Dept 500-4500 PARK DEVELOPMENT
06 MATERIALS & SERVICES

06 Sub Totals: 6,000.00 0.00 447.34 5,552.66 5,552.66 92.54

07 CAPITAL OUTLAY
07 Sub Totals: 10,000.00 0.00 3,364.57 6,635.43 6,635.43 66.35

09 MISCELLANEOUS
09 Sub Totals: 234,508.00 0.00 0.00 234,508.00 234,508.00 100.00

Expense Sub Totals: 250,508.00 0.00 3,811.91 246,696.09 246,696.09 98.48

Fund Revenue Sub Totals: 250,508.00 1,236.91 317,616.74 -67,108.74 -67,108.74 0.00
Fund Expense Sub Totals: 250,508.00 0.00 3,811.91 246,696.09 246,696.09 98.48
Fund 500 Sub Totals: 0.00 -1,236.91 -313,804.83 313,804.83

Fund 550 RV PARK FUND
Dept 550-0000
R1

Revenue Sub Totals: 108,500.00 4,402.00 101,687.14 6,812.86 6,812.86 6.28

Dept 550-5500
06 MATERIALS & SERVICES

06 Sub Totals: 30,000.00 2,841.94 14,471.13 15,528.87 15,528.87 51.76

09 MISCELLANEOUS
09 Sub Totals: 78,500.00 0.00 0.00 78,500.00 78,500.00 100.00

Expense Sub Totals: 108,500.00 2,841.94 14,471.13 94,028.87 94,028.87 86.66

Fund Revenue Sub Totals: 108,500.00 4,402.00 101,687.14 6,812.86 6,812.86 6.28
Fund Expense Sub Totals: 108,500.00 2,841.94 14,471.13 94,028.87 94,028.87 86.66

Page 30 of 75



Fund 550 Sub Totals: 0.00 -1,560.06 -87,216.01 87,216.01
Fund 580 CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
Dept 580-0000
R1

Revenue Sub Totals: 1,048,908.00 2,839.78 984,649.79 64,258.21 64,258.21 6.13
Dept 580-5800 CAPITAL PROJECTS
07 CAPITAL OUTLAY

07 Sub Totals: 60,000.00 0.00 62,578.75 -2,578.75 -2,578.75 0.00

09 MISCELLANEOUS
09 Sub Totals: 988,908.00 0.00 0.00 988,908.00 988,908.00 100.00

Expense Sub Totals: 1,048,908.00 0.00 62,578.75 986,329.25 986,329.25 94.03

Fund Revenue Sub Totals: 1,048,908.00 2,839.78 984,649.79 64,258.21 64,258.21 6.13
Fund Expense Sub Totals: 1,048,908.00 0.00 62,578.75 986,329.25 986,329.25 94.03
Fund 580 Sub Totals: 0.00 -2,839.78 -922,071.04 922,071.04

Revenue Totals: 16,541,798.00 544,031.83 13,658,795.12 2,883,002.88 2,883,002.88 17.43
Expense Totals: 16,541,798.00 417,636.32 4,412,486.36 12,129,311.64 12,129,311.64 73.33
Report Totals: 0.00 -126,395.51 -9,246,308.76 9,246,308.76

GL-Budget Status (2/2/2024 - 11:07 AM) Page 1

Page 31 of 75



              CITY OF MYRTLE CREEK 
POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 
  P.O. BOX 940 / 215 NW PLEASANT ST 

MYRTLE CREEK, OR  97457 
BUSINESS:  541-863-5222 FAX:  541-863-6690 

 
Department Report January 2024 

 
 
FIREARMS TRAINING 
Officers from the police department did their annual lowlight/night firearms 
course.  The training course consisted of several shooting stations and drills. 
 
OFFICER ACADEMY UPDATE 
Officer Isaiah Smith started the academy at the end of January and is scheduled to 
graduate May 24th. 
 
OFFICER RESIGNATION  
Nick Murtha resigned from his position as police officer for the City of Myrtle 
Creek after he accepted a police officer position for the City of Winston.  Nick’s 
last day was January 4th.  The City of Winston was sent a letter with an invoice 
attached requesting reimbursement of $11,192.61 under ORS 181A.620.  This 
ORS allows departments to request a percentage of the wages and benefits paid for 
an officer while attending the academy and during their field training.    
 
OPEN POLICE OFFICER POSITION. 
The police department conducted interviews on January 10th for the open police 
officer position.  An individual was selected from that process and is currently in 
the background investigation portion.  The individual selected is a certified police 
officer from Harney County Oregon and grew up in the Douglas County area and 
wanted to move back with his family.  
 
 
READING TO CHILDREN. 
Officer Isaiah Smith was requested to read to the kids at the Nazarene Church 
private school.  After reading to the kids, Officer Smith said he had a great time 
and was given several thank-you cards from the students.  
 

Page 32 of 75



GRANT 
The police department applied for a grant through the Department of Justice in 
2022 for partial reimbursement for purchasing ballistic vests. The city finally 
received the $2,800 grant funds. 
 
Rose Motel 
The county code enforcement officer cited the owner along with a couple of other 
individuals who were still living at the Rose Motel.  Myrtle Creek officers have 
issued several citations for those tenants running a generator late at night.  I issued 
the owner three ordinance violation citations and have seen him take several truck 
loads of junk off the property since then.  The department will continue to address 
the location as long as ordinance violations continue. 
 
154 Broadway Street 
The department noticed that the residence at 154 Broadway Street, which sets on 
the corner of Lural Avenue, recently began acquiring camp trailers, Rv’s and a lot 
of junk on the property.  The owner was issued an ordinance citation at the 
beginning of the month and was issued a second citation a few weeks later as he 
failed to correct the problems.  The department will continue to address this 
property as long as ordinance violations continue.  
  
 
CALLS FOR SERVICE 
During the month of January, the police department responded to 164 calls for 
service, issued 35 traffic citations, gave 55 traffic warnings, and arrested 22 
individuals.   
 
   
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
Chief Jonathan Brewster 
 
 

Page 33 of 75



              2024 MCFD Call Responses
Call Type Ja

n
Feb

M
arc

h
April

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

Aug
Se

pt
O

ct
Nov

Dec
TO

TAL

MVA-Non Injury 3 3
MVA - UTL 1 1
MVA - Injury 2 2
MVA - Fatal 0
MVA - Cancelled 1 1
Medical Aid 16 16
Medical Aid - Cancelled 2 2
Public Assist 0
Public Assist-Lift Assist 14 14
Public Safety 0
Unattended Death 0
Fire/Carb Alarm 1 1
False Alarm Activation 0
Alarm Testing 0
Flue Fire 0
Fire - Vehicle 1 1
Fire 0
Fire - Illegal Burn 2 2
Fire - Controlled Burn 0
Fire - UTL 1 1
Fire-Nat Cover 0
Fire - Cancelled 0
Structure Fire 2 2
Structure Fire - Cancelled 5 5
Structure Fire -Commercial 1 1
Over Bank Rescue 0
Water Rescue 0
Water/Over Bank-Cancelled 0

        TOTAL 52 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 52

Page 34 of 75



Public Works and Parks  
February 20, 2024, Activities Report  

• Streets 
o 19 Utility Locates in the month of January 
o Weekly downtown garbage collection 
o Regular street sweeping 
o Inspected and cleaned storm drains 
o Cleared plugged storm drain on Orchard 
o Rock armored storm drain on Springbrook 
o Pothole repair on Madrona and Division 

 
• Sewer 

o Weekly lift station maintenance 
o Disconnected services from old Riverside lift station 
o Addressed sewer line issues in Abby’s parking lot  
o Scada install on South Main and N. Myrtle lift stations 

 
• Water 

o 19 delinquent water turnoffs  
o Monthly meter reads 
o Continued lead copper survey to complete pipe inventory required by DEQ 
o  Service line repair 

 Johnson Street 
o Installed new Radio meters   

 
• Public Works Misc. 

o Took down Christmas decorations and City Christmas tree 
o Public Works Staff attending Flagging Class 

 
• Parks and Public Building Department 

o Monthly park maintenance 
o Finished City Hall Council Chambers remodel 
o Fixed HVAC issue at City Hall 
o Repaired countertop at Evergreen Park restroom 
o Attended flagging class 

 

Page 35 of 75



• Water Treatment 
o Routine labs and testing 
o South Umpqua River Plant produced 16.847 (MG) - 29 days of operation 
o Plant running at 900 GPM 

 
• Wastewater Treatment 

o Routine labs and testing 
o Total effluent flow to the South Umpqua River = 63.902 M.G.  
o Total Effluent flow to the M.C. Golf Course = 0 M.G.  
o Myrtle Creek influent flow = 32.755 M.G.  
o Tri-City Influent Flow = 35.913 M.G.  
o Total Effluent  = 63.902 M.G.  

 

Page 36 of 75



Myrtle Creek - City Council Agenda Report 
Agenda item: Water Construction Budget Adjustment 

Meeting Date: February 20, 2024 Primary Staff Contact: Lonnie Rainville 
Department: Water Department E-Mail: lrainville@myrtlecreek.org 
Secondary Dept.: Secondary Contact: 

Issue before the Council:   

Resolution for an adjustment to the Water Construction Budget to allow for painting of the south water 
tank. 

Staff Recommendation:  

Staff recommends the approval of Resolution 24-04, a resolution to adjust the Water Construction 
Budget within the 2023-2024 fiscal budget to allocate funding for the painting of the south water tank. 

Background:  

In 2019 and 2022 the Oregon Health Authority Sanitary Survey identified the exterior condition of the 
south water tank as not being in good condition. In 2023 we began work with Dyer Partnership to 
assist the City with painting the water tank. Due to the flaking of the paint and the year the tank was 
installed the paint was tested for lead.  Test results confirmed the exterior paint contained lead. 

The City budgeted $100,000 in ARPA funds to paint the water tank but with the existing paint that has 
to be removed containing lead the cost of the project has doubled to nearly $200,000.  In order to 
complete the removal of the lead paint and then recoat the tank we need to add $100,000 to the Capital 
Outlay-Other line item in the Water Construction Budget to allow for the project to take place before 
the next summer season. To allow for contingency with the project, an additional $40,000 will also be 
added to the Capital Outlay-Other budget. The Capital Outlay-Other Budget adjustment will be an 
increase from $30,000 to $170,000.   

The revenue for the Water Construction Budget also needs to be amended.  When preparing the Water 
Misc. budget we allocated $55,000 reserved for the Membrane replacement and $35,000 for Active 
Carbon replacement.  We did not allocate where these transfers would go. We need to add these 
amounts to the Transfer-Water Fund Revenue line item under the Water Construction Budget.  
The Transfer-Water Fund  would need to be increased from $85,000 to $175,000.  

In addition, we need to adjust the Investment Interest line to more accurately reflect the interest 
amount  to be received.  The Investment Interest will be increased from $20,000 to $104,562.   

Finally, We need to adjust the Water Construction Budget Ending Fund Balance from $2,338,860 to 
$2,373,422 to reflect the increased anticipated balance at the end of the budget year. 

Page 37 of 75



Related City Policies:  
 
Finance and Budget 
 
Fiscal Impact:  
 
See Attachment A 
 
Council Options: 
 
Council can approve the budget adjustment to allow the water tank painting project to be completed 
this spring and allow for revenues to be accurately reflected. 
 
Council can deny the budget adjustments.  
 
Potential Motion: 
 
I make the motion to approve Resolution 24-04 as presented and to amend the 2023/2024 fiscal 
budget as presented in Attachment A of the Resolution. 

Page 38 of 75



Page 39 of 75



Page 40 of 75



Page 41 of 75



Page 42 of 75



Page 43 of 75



Page 44 of 75



Page 45 of 75



Page 46 of 75



CITY OF MYRTLE CREEK, OREGON 

RESOLUTION 24-04 
 

 

 

 
WHEREAS, on June 6, 2023, Resolution 23-08 was approved, adopting the 2023-2024 Fiscal 
Budget for the City of Myrtle Creek, and making appropriations; and 

WHEREAS, this is the first supplemental budget for the 2023-2024 fiscal year; and  

WHEREAS, the amounts and purposes of the transfers of appropriations are set forth in  
Attachment A and incorporated herein by reference; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the City Council of Myrtle Creek 
hereby adopts the first supplemental budget for the 2023-2024 fiscal year. Council hereby makes 
the new appropriations for 2023-2024 fiscal year in the amounts and for the purposes shown on 
Attachment A, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference. 

 

ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MYRTLE CREEK THIS 20TH 
DAY OF FEBRUARY 2024. 

APPROVED BY THE MAYOR THIS 20TH DAY OF FEBRUARY 2024. 

 

        ______________________________ 
        Matthew Hald, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 
Joanna Bilbrey, City Recorder 

 

 

 

A Resolution to Approve a Supplemental Budget to Adjust the Water 
Construction Budget Within the 2023-2024 Fiscal Budget  

Page 47 of 75



ATTACHMENT A
WATER CONSTRUCTION

REVENUE
(260-0000)

HISTORICAL DATA
2021 2022 2023 2023 Account Description 2024 2024

Actual Actual Adopted Estimated Number Adopted Revised
1,845,348 1,848,598 1,969,876 2,099,581 400.00 NET WORKING CAPITAL 2,251,346 2,251,346

25,028 25,028 12,514 56,313 406.00 SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGE 12,514 12,514
14,159 10,909 15,000 20,000 420.00 INVESTMENT INTEREST 20,000 104,562

200,000 200,000 175,000 100,000 490.07 TRANSFER-WATER FUND 85,000 175,000
2,084,535 2,084,535 2,172,390 2,275,894 TOTAL WATER CONSTRUCTION 2,368,860 2,543,422

WATER CONSTRUCTION
Expenditures
(260-2600)

Capital Outlay
214,840 5,000 900,000 0 701.09 CAPITAL OUTLAY-PLANT 0

800 0 1,187,672 24,548 701.10 CAPITAL OUTAY-OTHER 30,000 170,000
215,640 5,000 12,087,672 24,548 TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 30,000 170,000

MISCELLANEOUS
2,251,346 985.00 UNAPPROPRIATED END BALANCE 2,338,860 2,373,422
2,275,894 TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 2,338,860 2,373,422

TOTAL WATER CONSTRUCTION 2,368,860 2,543,422

Page 48 of 75



Myrtle Creek - City Council Agenda Report 
 

Agenda item: Approval to Award Contract for Coating of South Water Tank 
Meeting Date: September20, 2022 Primary Staff Contact:  Lonnie Rainville 
Department: Public Works E-Mail: lrainville@myrtlecreek.org 
Secondary Dept.:  Secondary Contact:   
    

 
Issue before the Council:   

 
Approval to award a contract to Marine Industrial Tank Diving and Coating to abate existing lead paint 
and recoat the south water tank. 
 
Staff Recommendation:  
 
Staff recommends the approval to award a contract to Marine Industrial Tank Diving and Coating to 
abate existing lead paint and recoat the south water tank. 
 
 
Background:   
 
In 2019 and 2022 the Oregon Health Authority Sanitary Survey identified the exterior condition of the 
south water tank as not being in good condition and required recoating. In 2023 we began work with 
Dyer Partnership to assist the City with painting the water tank. Due to the flaking of the paint and the 
year the tank was installed the paint was tested for lead.  Test results confirmed the exterior paint 
contained lead.  
 
The City requested quotes for the abatement of the existing coating on the south tank and to apply a 
new coating.  The city received two quotes, one from MJE Industrial in the amount of $465,400 and 
one from Marine Industrial Diving and Coating in the amount of $197,646.25. 
 
If Council approves awarding of a contract,  City staff will move forward with having the work done 
this spring. 
 
 
Related City Policies:  
 
Procurement policy 
 
Fiscal Impact:  
 
$100,000 will be used from ARPA budget and $97,646.25 will come from the Water Construction 
Budget.  
 
 
 

Page 49 of 75



Council Options: 
 
Council can approve to award the contract to Marine Industrial Diving and Coating in the amount of 
$197,646.25. 
 
Council can reject both bids and request staff to obtain additional bids. 
 
Council can take no action, resulting in no work being done to the south tank.  
 
Potential Motion: 
 
I make the motion to approve awarding a contract to Marine Industrial Tank Diving and Coating in 
the amount of $197, 646.25 to abate the existing coating and to apply a new coating to the south 
water tank.  
 

Page 50 of 75



Page 51 of 75



Page 52 of 75



Page 53 of 75



Page 54 of 75



Page 55 of 75



Page 56 of 75



Page 57 of 75



Page 58 of 75



Page 59 of 75



Page 60 of 75



Page 61 of 75



Page 62 of 75



Page 63 of 75



Page 64 of 75



Page 65 of 75



Page 66 of 75



Page 67 of 75



Page 68 of 75



Page 69 of 75



Page 70 of 75



Page 71 of 75



Page 72 of 75



Page 73 of 75



Page 74 of 75



Page 75 of 75


	2024.02.20 City Council Agenda.pdf
	2024.02.20 City Council Agenda Packet.pdf
	2024.02.20 City Council Agenda Packet.pdf
	2024.02.06 City Council Minutes
	PLEDGE OF ALLEGINACE
	PUBLIC PRESENTATION No public presentations

	Binder1.pdf
	2024.02.20 City Council Agenda Packet.pdf
	2024.02.20 City Council Agenda Packet.pdf
	2024.02.20 City Council Agenda.pdf
	Payroll & Claims Jan 2024
	Checks by Date Jan 2024
	Community Development Department February 20 2024 Report
	January 2024
	2024 MCFD Response Report
	Sheet1

	Public Works 02-20-2024 Report
	Budget Adjustment for Water Construction Staff Rpt & Evidence
	Budget Adjustment for Water Construction.pdf
	Myrtle Creek - City Council Agenda Report
	Agenda item: Water Construction Budget Adjustment


	Resolution 24-04 Staff rpt Supporting material.pdf

	Resolution 24-04 Budget Amendment Draft
	Resolution 24-04 Budget Amendment Draft
	Water Con revision 23-24.pdf
	Sheet1



	budget status Jan 2024.pdf
	Sheet1


	Staff report to award contact for tank painting.pdf
	Myrtle Creek - City Council Agenda Report
	Agenda item: Approval to Award Contract for Coating of South Water Tank


	Tank Painting Quotes






